
ATTORNEY GENERAL 1

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1 GRANITE PLACE SOUTH

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

JOHN M. FORMELLA JAMES T. BOFFETTI

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

February 14, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into a subgrant with the Manchester Police
Athletic League, Manchester, NH (Vendor # 330520 BOOl), in an amount not to exceed
$275,625, from the Byrne State Crisis Intervention Program (Byrne SCIP), for the purpose of
supporting the positions of one full-time Program Coordinator; two full-time Mentors; and one
part-time Clinical Supervisor, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through
September 30, 2026. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available as follows:

02-20-20-201510-6714 FY 2025

Byrne SCIP

072-500574, Grants Federal $275,625

EXPLANATION

The Federal Byrne State Crisis Intervention Program (Byrne SCIP) is a formula grant
program furthering the United States Department of Justice mission to prevent crime and
violence. The focus of this grant is on behavioral health and mental health crisis situational
response.

To satisfy grant requirements and thoughtfully utilize the funds, the Department of
Justice (DOJ) formed the Byme SCIP Advisory Board. Members of the board represent the
DOJ, the Administrative Office of the Courts (ADC), local law enforcement, and behavioral
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health specialists. This Advisory Board compiled projects that focus on the mission of the grant
requirements.

One initiative approved by the Byrne SCIP Advisory Board is to subgrant funds to the
Manchester Police Athletic League to support one full-time Program Coordinator; two full-time
Mentors; and one part-time Clinical Supervisor within the Manchester Police Athletic League,
Inc. These positions will help with the pairing of high-risk youth with adult mentors with shared
lived experience in a crisis intervention strategy that can disrupt cycles of violence and prevent
escalation that might otherwise lead to incidents ofjuvenile violence.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

JohifM. Formella

Attorney General

#4899569



FORM NUMBERG-l (version 11/7021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

1 Granite Place South, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc.

1.4. Grantee Address

409 Beech Street

Manchester, NH 03103

1.5. Grantee Phone #

(603)752-3131

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-6714-072-

588510

1.7. Completion Date

09/30/2026

1.8. Grant Limitation

$275,625

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Thomas Kaempfer

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-3658

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting
requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 3l;95-b."

1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3

1.13. State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Slgnor(s)

Z^. Thomas D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: 2/14/25

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the
Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter
referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work
attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

S.

S.I.

8.2.

8J.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respea to. the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
efieciive on the date on the date of approval of ftis Agreement by theGovemor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 Che EfTective Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provkled herein, the Project, including all reports
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the dale in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMQIft4T: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS- PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C.
attached hereto. . .

The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be asset forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions sei forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration
of the satisfactory ̂ rformance of the Project, u determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagra;^ 5.5 of these general provbions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount The State shall withhold from the amount otherwbe
payable to the Grantee under this subparagrtq)h 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and diall be the only, and the conpleie,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project The State shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized,
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
these general provbions.
rOMPI lANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, wd orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permib and RSA 3 U95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after die Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounb of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of adminbtration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calb, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipu, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwbe required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to rnatters covered by thb Agreement The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audib
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as chat
term is hereinafter defin^). and other information relating to all matters covered
by thb Agreement As used in thb paragraph. "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affilbted with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provbions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at iu own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform
the Project. The Grantee warranb that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee,
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it b engaged in a combined effort
to perform (he Project to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
(he State, or who b a State ofTicer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be (he representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of thb Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decbion on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA- RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in thb Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things
developed or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or developed by
reason of. thb Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charu, sound recordings, video recordings, piciorbl
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, cornputer printoub,.notes, letters, memoranda, and
documents, all whether jmbhed or unfinished.

92. Between the Effective Date and.the Completion Date the'Grentee shall gnnt to
the State, or any person desighato] by it, unrestricted^access to ail data'for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, dbposal, or for anyother
purpose whatsoever.

92. No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone oihefihan die State.

9.4. On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been'received
from the State or purchased with'ftjnds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be. the property of the State, and shall be retumed^to the State
upon demand or upon lermmation of thb Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

9i. The State, end anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwbe use. in whole or in part, all data.

10. CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
thb Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the.Slate hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, end in no event shell the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction or termination of those funds.the State shall

have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ifever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immedbtely upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

11. EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

II. I. Any one or more ofthe following acts or omissions ofthe Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter refbrred to as "Events of Default"):

11.1.1 Failure to perform the Project'saibfactorily or on schedule; or
11.12 Failure to submit any report required hereunder or
11.1.3 Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
11. 1.4 Failure to perform any ofthe other covenants and conditions of thb Agreement.
11.2. Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Defaulu the State may take any one, or more,

or all.'of the following actions:
112.1 Give the Grantee a wriden notice specilying the Event of Default end requiring it

to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default b not
timely remedied, terminate thb Agreement, erfective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice ofiermination; and

11.2.2 Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be m^e under thb Agreement and ordering that the portion ofthe
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Defhult shall never be paid to the Grantec;'and

11.2.3 Set offagainst any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
(he State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; end

11.2.4 Treat the agreemenias breached and pursue any ofits remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

12. TERMINATION.

12.1. In the event ofany early terminatiori of thb Agreement for any rea»n other than
die completion of the ProjecL the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termcnaiion. a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these, general

12.2. provbions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of.these general
12.3. provbions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no

event relieve the Grantee from any and all Ibbiiity for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of (he Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in thb Agreement to the contmy. either the State or,
12.4. except where notice default has been given lo the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,

may terminate thb Agreement without cause uiron thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,

13. and no representative, officer or employee of (he State of-New Hampdilre'or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the ^ject b to'be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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14.

15.

16.

19.

20.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the inteitst of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she hove any personal or
pecuniary interest, ditea or indirect in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgraniee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its ofTicers,
employees, agents, menibers, subcontractors orsubgrantccs, shall have authority
to birxJ the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrented by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, mdemnify and hold harmless
the State, its ofTicers and employees, from end against any and all losses suffered
by the Stale, its ofTicers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, iu ofTicers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrentee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement.
INSURANgg.
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death anyone incident, and S500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

22.

23.

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance

required under this Agreement no leter than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party'shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certiTied mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post OiTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instniment in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of die State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. Thb Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a pari of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
[ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The addhional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part ofthis agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc., as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as Subrecipient)
shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which
are subject to annual review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to
any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes discrimination on
the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail providing language
assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S. Department
of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these requirements. The
guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the Subrecipient
on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a copy of the
finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
810 7th Street, N W, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information regarding your
obligations under cjvil rights please reference the state website at http;//vAvw.doJ.nh.gov/grants-
management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded funding from this office, civil
rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply) with
any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34 U.S.C. §
20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b));
the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 1229l(b)(l3)); the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-
34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86); and the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex. Order 13279,
Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based arid Community Organizations; Executive Order
13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With Faith-Based and
Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F!R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that paid
for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or $81.25 per
hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly rate (excluding
travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required. Prior approval requests require
additional justification.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH Department
of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any
federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised
while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the NH DOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

7. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically
including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and
prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and
requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that engage
in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to
recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations
(currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title
28-Judicial Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

8. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

9. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2022 award from OJP.
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this
FY 2022 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number
(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements
apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and
regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated
on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2022 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP
awards ̂ d subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at
hllps://oip.uov/rundinu/Part200UnirormRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain - typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period
applies - and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must
provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2
C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or
distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of
the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

10. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly
address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by
the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

1 1. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assur^ces or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ")
may determine that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one of more requirements
otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions regarding enforcement, including any
such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during the period of
performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal
Notices: Special circumstances as to particular a\s^rd conditions"
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

(ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and incorporated by reference into
the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official
accepts all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed
by the authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of
the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements — whether a condition set out in full
below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to
conduct during the award period - may result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to
the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow
costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other legal action as
appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead
to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

12. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)
properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent
with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(I).

B. Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in activities
under this award of both—

(1) this awaM requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it
unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated
provisions of 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility veriiFications pertinent to
compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention
requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verily

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify
(www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of the
subrecipient uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the
event of a "Tentative Nonconflrmation" or a "Final Nonconflrmatiori") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United Slates" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.
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D. Nothing In this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any
applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation
otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify
visit the E-Verify website (https://wNvw.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before
award acceptance.

13. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier - develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training
Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
hups://ww\v.oiD.uov/rundinu/imDlcment/trainint2-iiuidinu-DrinciDlcs-uraniees-and-
sLiburanices.

14. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Pan 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use
the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its
election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs
(MTDC) as defined by the Pan 200 Uniform Requirements.

15. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated - in the application for the award
(as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding
announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute - that a purpose of some or all of
the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a subrecipient at any
tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of
an individual's employment status.
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The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interacl-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2022)

The recipient, and any subreciplent ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent

restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2022, are set out at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY22AppropriationsRestrictions.htm,
and are incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the
recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of OJP.

17. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs."

18. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this
award, if the recipient is designated as "high-risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee
list.

19. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.
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Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

20. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (Pll)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to
respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)
- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of
"Personally Identifiable information (Pll)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the scope of an OJP grant-
funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual
or imminent breach of Pll to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence
of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

21. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences,
meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements" In the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

22. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of
work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the
timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance.
Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)
and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

23. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making
agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient Is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the
recipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OJP by email at
OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes
any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the
recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.
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The recipient's disclosure must include the following: I. The federal awarding agency that
currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient was designated high risk,
3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

24. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as

posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at
https://ojp.gov/rmancialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

25. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters
No subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract
or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign
an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or
purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse
to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency
authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information). Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient—

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or
abuse as described above; and
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b. certifies that, if it leams or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If "the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that—

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor
entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide
prompt written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or
permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled
"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory
provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including
many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that

statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.
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28. Specific post-award approval required to lise a noncompetitive approach in any procurement '
contract that would exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,
$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements — OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not
consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

29. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to
trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award))
and are incorporated by reference here.

30. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives
any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient
promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identicail cost items for which
funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested
by the DOJ awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope
Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminMe any inappropriate duplication of funding.
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31. Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ
Office of the Inspector General (010) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent,
subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this
award- (I) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or
civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OIG by-(l) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail
directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations Division,
ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202)
616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at h(ips://oit£.iiisticc.uov/hotlinc.

32. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that - for
purposes of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore does not consider a procurement "contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site
at https://oJp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards
("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

33. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirerhents regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirerhents regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of
information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-
tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that
do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://oJp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:
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System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

34. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support
or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at
any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal
statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of
them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant,
contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or
modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including
an exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to
contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of
OJP.

35. FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards
("subgrants") of $30,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total
compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier
subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient obligations,
which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006
(FFATA), are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm
(Award condition: Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation), and are incorporated
by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to- (1) an award of less
than $30,000, or (2) an award made to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).
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36. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's
guidelines, protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager
for this award and the Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such
monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The recipient agrees to
provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to
abide by reasonable deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to
cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ
awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other restrictions on the recipient's
access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the recipient as
a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

37. Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable
statutes, regulations, award conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include
the applicable conditions of this award in any subaward. Among other things, the recipient is
responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of specific outcomes and
benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit, upon
request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this
award.

38. Use of program income

Program income (as defined in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements) must be used in accordance
with the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. Program income earnings and
expenditures both must be reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report, SF 425.

39. Justice Information Sharing

Information sharing projects funded under this award must comply with DOJ's Global Justice
Information Sharing Initiative (Global) guidelines. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any
tier) must conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all constituent elements, where
applicable, as described at: https://it.oJp.gov/gsp_grantcondition. The recipient (and any
subrecipient at any tier) must document planned approaches to information sharing and describe
compliance with the GSP and appropriate privacy policy that protects shared information, or
provide detailed justification for why an alternative approach is recommended.

Page 17 of37
Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBITA

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

40. Avoidance of duplication of networks

To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for law
enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between
jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the
communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the recipient can
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost effective or would
impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system.

41. Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23

With respect to any information technology system funded or supported by funds under this
award, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with 28 C.F.R. Part 23,
Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be
applicable. Should OJP determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its discretion,
perform audits of the system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28 C.F.R. Part 23
occur, the recipient may be fined as per 34 U.S.C. 1023 l(c)-(d). The recipient may not satisfy
such a fine with federal funds. v

42. Protection of human research subjects

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R.
Part 46 and all OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects,
including obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject
informed consent.

43. Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality
requirements of 34 U.S.C. 1023! and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and
revelation of data or information. The recipient further agrees, as a condition of award approval,
to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 22 and, in
particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

44. The award subrecipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program
outputs and outcomes. The data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of ^
Justice Programs.

45. The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or
information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project.

46. Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following
statement on the home page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents)
whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to interior content), and on any pages from which
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a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages that provide results or
outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither
the U.S. Department of Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or
necessarily endorse, this Web site (including, without limitation, its content, technical
infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of the foregoing
statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be
included through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full
text of the statement.

47. Any written, visual, or audio publications, with the exception of press releases, whether
published at the grantee's or government's expense, shall contain the following statements: "This
project was supported by Grant No. 15PBJA-23-GG-00022-BSC1 awarded by the Bureau of
Justice Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a component of the Department of
Justice's Office of Justice Programs, which also includes the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the
National Institute of Justice, the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, the
Office for Victims of Crime, and the SMART Office. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies
of the U.S. Department of Justice." The current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide
provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities.

48. Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per
day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the OJP program office prior
to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

49. The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares
and certifies, among other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept
the award on behalf of the recipient entity and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material
requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of performance under this award. The
recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role of Authorized
Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

50. Submission of eligible records relevant to the National Instant Background Check System

Consonant with federal statutes that pertain to firearms and background checks - including 18
U.S.C. 922 and 34 U.S.C. ch. 409 - if the recipient (or any subrecipient at any tier) uses this
award to fund (in whole or in part) a specific project or program (such as a law enforcement,
prosecution, or court program) that results in any court dispositions, information, or other records
that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the National Instant
Background Check System (NICS), or that has as one of its purposes the establishment or
improvement of records systems that contain any court dispositions, information, or other
records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS, the recipient
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(or subrecipient, if applicable) must ensure that all such court dispositions, information, or other
records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the'NlCS are promptly
made available to the NIGS or to the "State" repository/database that is electronically available to
(and accessed by) the NICS, and - when appropriate - promptly must update, correct, modify,
or remove such NlCS-relevant "eligible records".

In the event of minor and transitory non-compliance, the recipient may submit evidence to
demonstrate diligent monitoring of compliance with this condition (including subrecipient
compliance). DOJ will give great weight to any such evidence in any express written
determination regarding this condition.

51. The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this
award may be used by the recipient for direct costs associated with administering the award.

52. The recipient may not obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides
explicit written approval of the proposed subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be
obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a Grant Award Modification
(GAM) through OJP's JustGrants system.

53. Applicants must ensure that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to the
services under this program(s). National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the
basis of limited English proficiency (LHP). To ensure compliance with Title VI and the Safe
Streets Act, recipients are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may entail providing language
assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S. Department
of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with Title VI requirements. The
guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.'jov.

54. Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased
at any threat level, make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body
armor has been tested and found to comply with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic
or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor Model List. In addition,
ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States and
must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard
information and the NIJ Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links
located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/topics/equipment-and-technology/body-
armOr. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body armor, the recipient
is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed
officers while o"!! duty.
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

55. The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward,
at any tier) may be used for unmanned aircraft systems (DAS), which includes unmanned aircraft
vehicles (DAY), or for any accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56. In accepting this award, the recipient agrees that grant funds cannot be used for Facial
Recognition Technology (FRT) unless the recipient has policies and procedures in place to
ensure that the FRT will be utilized in an appropriate and responsible manner that promotes
public safety, and protects privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties and complies with all
applicable provisions of the U.S. Constitution, including the Fourth Amendment's protection
against unreasonable searches and seizures and the First Amendment's freedom of association
and speech, as well as other laws and regulations. Recipients utilizing funds for.FRT must make
such policies and procedures available to DOJ upon request.

57. Compliance with National Environmental Policy Act and related statutes

Upon request, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must assist BJA in complying with
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the National Historic Preservation Act, and
other related federal environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of these award
funds, either directly by the recipient or by a subrecipient. Accordingly, the recipient agrees to
first determine if any of the following activities will be funded by the grant, prior to obligating
funds for any of these purposes. If it is determined that any of the following activities will be
funded by the award, the recipient agrees to contact BJA.

The recipient understands that this condition applies to new activities as set out below, whether
or not they are being specifically funded with these award funds. That is, as long as the activity is
being conducted by the recipient, a subrecipient, or any third party, and the activity needs to be
undertaken in order to use these award funds, this condition must first be met. The activities

covered by this condition are:

a. New construction;

b. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically
sensitive area, including properties located within a 100-year flood plain, a wetland, or
habitat for endangered species, or a property listed on or eligible for listing on the National
Register of Historic Places;

c. A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a) result in a
change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size;

d. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that
are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b) traditionally used,
for example, in office, household, recreational, or education environments; and

e. Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory operations,
including the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories.
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

TTie recipient understands and agrees that complying with NEPA may require the preparation of
an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as directed by BJA.
The recipient further understands and agrees to the requirements for implementation of a
Mitigation Plan, as detailed at https://bja.gov/Funding/ncpa.html, for programs relating to
methamphetamine laboratory operations.

Application of This Condition to Recipient's Existing Programs or Activities: For any of the
recipient's or its subrecipients' existing programs or activities that will be funded by these award
funds, the recipient, upon specific request from BJA, agrees to cooperate with BJA in any
preparation by BJA of a national or program environmental assessment of that funded program
or activity.

58. "Methods of Administration" - monitoring compliance with civil rights laws and
nondiscrimination provisions

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
applicable federal civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions. Within 90 days of the date
of award acceptance, the recipient must submit to OJP's Office for Civil Rights (at
CivilRightsMOA@usdoj.gov) written Methods of Administration ("MOA") for subrecipient
monitoring with respect to civil rights requirements. In addition, upon request by OJP (or by
another authorized federal agency), the recipient must make associated documentation available
for review.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to Methods of Administration are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/StateMethodsAdmin-FY2017update.htm
(Award condition: "Methods of Administration" - Requirements applicable to States (FY 2017
Update)), and are incorporated by reference here.

59. Regarding medication-assisted treatment (MAT), the award recipient understands and agrees to
the following: 1) all clients in a BJA-funded drug court have a right to access MAT under the
care and prescription of a physician to the extent MAT is clinically indicated; 2) BJA-funded
drug courts must not deny any eligible client enrollment to the drug court program because of
their use of FDA-approved medications for the treatment of substance abuse; 3) MAT must be
permitted to be continued for as long as the prescriber determines that the FDA-approved
medication is clinically beneficial; 4) while under no circumstances can a BJA-funded drug court
program deny access to MAT under the care and prescription of a physician when it is clinically
indicated, a judge retains judicial discretion to mitigate/reduce the risk of abuse, misuse, or
diversion of these medications; and 5) federal funds shall not be used to support activities that
violate the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. 801-904.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

60. All BJA-funded adult drug courts must be operated based on the 10 key components for drug
courts, which are found in BJA's and National Association of Drug Court Professional's
(NADCP) publication: Defining Drug Courts: The Key Components at
https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffilesl/bja/20562i.pdf. During the grant period of performance, if BJA
concludes that a funded drug court is not conforming to the 10 key components, it retains the
right to place the award recipient on a corrective action plan to bring the drug court into
conformance. Continued failure to maintain conformance to the key components may result in a
hold placed on award funds or suspension/termination of the grant award agreement.

61. The recipient understands and agrees to operate any behavioral health crisis care program funded
under this award in accordance with the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration National Guidelines for Behavioral Health Crisis Care:
hups://www.5;amhsa.i>ov/siics/dcraull/nies/naiional-i^uidelines-ror-behavioral-heahh-crisis-carc-
02242020.Ddr.

62. Limit on use of grant funds for grantees' employees' salaries

With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus
bonuses) to any employee of the award subrecipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum
annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES)
at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for that year. (An award
recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an
individual basis at the discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement
under which this award is made.

63. Subrecipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPllS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of
information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to
the performance oO either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and
performance system (currently, "FAPllS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPliS") within SAM are posted on the OJP web
site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPllS.htm (Award condition: Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters, Including Recipient Reporting to FAPllS), and are incorporated by
reference here.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
(NHDOJ) as the State Agency for expenses incurred and services provided surrounding the
support of one full-time Program Coordinator; two full-time Mentors; and one part-time
Clinical Supervisor within the Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. for the purpose of
pairing high-risk youth with adult mentors with shared lived experience is a crisis intervention
strategy that can disrupt cycles of violence and prevent escalation that might otherwise lead to
incidents of juvenile gun violence.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures described in
Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for reimbursement on the state
approved expenditure reporting form as provided. Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a
quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days following the end of the current quarterly activities.
Expenditure reports submitted later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be
considered late and out of compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1.
the first quarterly report is due on April 15th or 15 days after the close of thefirst quarter
ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for ail grant expenses both state
funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this office or any
other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting documentation shall be
maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such desk
audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt shall be
made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. Ail correspondence and submittals shall be directed to: NH Department of Justice
Kathryn Fisher
Grants Management Unit
! Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301
(603) 271-1261
Katlirvn.E.FishL'r@doi.nh.uov
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EXHIBIT C

-PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in Exhibit B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the Grant Amount set forth in form block 1.8 of the General Provisions. The
Grant Amount consists of the following:

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $275,625.00 of
the total amount Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval to
09/30/2026, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent upon
continued state funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may
apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the state grant end
date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No extension
is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

4. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including, without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds, in the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall have the

right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of
such termination.
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EXHIBIT D

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

1, [responsible official]y certify that the

Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. [Subrecipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: httns://oln,gov/about/ocr/faq ccon.htm on

0:kIi1= l7-0'XS--\date\

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

R/^)aJv/|LL^ [official that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at https://oiD.uov/aboutyocr/ocr-traininu-videos/vidco-ocr-traininu.htm on:

0^ I I The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Manauernent Unil I NI-1 Department of Justice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process

1 further certify that: Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. [Subrecipient] will comply with
applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services and has a policy or written procedure in place for accepting discrimination-
based complaints from employees and program beneficiaries and that policy/procedure rhust be
made publicly available to program beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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EXHIBIT D

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1)1 have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. 1 understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) 1 certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 1 1182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(l 3) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
I2291(b)(l3)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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. EXHIBIT D

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42:204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) i assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeologicai and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 -4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 1025l(a)(17)), I assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

I a^ure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any) made by
the Department based on the application—
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EXHIBIT D

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLiANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601 -4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(9) If the Subrccipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § I0382(c)(l I),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § I0382(c)(l!).

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801 -3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor

^5::^ o^\ '3/ ̂
Signature Date
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EXHIBIT E

- NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and^must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for.reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal

funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds will not be used to supplant State or local
funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part 11, Chapter 3)
littp://www.oip.usdoi.gov/nnancialguide/part2/pan2chaD3.htm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,

but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 15PBJA-23-GG-00022-BSCI shall be used to supplement existing

funds for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Si.ny Ol fieOOa
Signature:
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EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are required to,attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shalfbe treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice ("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) if the Subrecipient's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (of their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

Page 31 of 37
Subrecipient Initials J

?-|l3|gL5^



2. DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pursuant to D.epartment regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2

C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or

performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or
receiving stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any
offense indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly
affects its (or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Subrecipients, to OJP at OjpcompIiancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to
COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A.If the Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and adminikrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the
Department (for OJP Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW
Subrecipients, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at
AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R, §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free workplace

by—

(a)Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b)Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e)Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients • U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice
Programs, ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.
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Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

if you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this certification.

Name of Authorized Signor

Sigriature

Title of Authorized Signor

Date

Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc.
409 Beech Street, Manchester, NH 03103

Name and Address of Agency
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,EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE -

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires Subrecipients of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1,
2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of
$30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result
in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting
requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation

Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the

FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), zx\d{ur\h.tx egrets to have one of the Subrecipient's
representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.1 1 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Finaticial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION-

E??^C^'T7\/z' Di/2£^TO^

Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signer

o3^l
ure Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the responses
to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is: HXH7NCMQURG3.

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants,
subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

Jk NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986?

NO ^YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business
or organization are as follows:
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION-

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Sccrciary of State of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER POLICE

ATHLETIC LEAGUE, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

September 30, 1992. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>'of State's oflice have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 179682

Certificate Number: 0006777149

iSf.

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of September A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar>' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , James E. Chambers , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Manchester Police Athletic League, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly
called and held on February 12 , 2025 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were
present and voting. (Date)

VOTED: That John Rainville, Executive Director (may list more than one
person) (Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of __Manchester Police Athletic League, lnc._ to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the
purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

DsAed:

nature of Efected Officer
ame: James E. Chambers

Title: Chairman, Board of Directors



vACO/gP* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MtVUDD/YYYY)

02/05/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}.

PRODUCER

Cross insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAME^^^ Marissa Leuci
(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

annBMs- manch.certs@cro8sagency.com

INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A - Everest Nationai Insurance Company
INSURED

Manchester Poiice Athietic League

409 Beech Street

i

Manchester NH 03103

INSURER B ;
15997

INSURER C' RLI Insurance Company 13056

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All Lines w/Prof REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES- LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

MLieVEXPAOOCISOSR EdLieVEEP
TYPE OF INSURANCE IN80 VWO POLICY NUMBER (MM/OO/YYYY) (MMmorTYYY)

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTES
PREMISES (Ea occutrence)

SIGL01805-241 06/15/2024 06/15/2025

MED EXP (Any on> p8r«on)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

X

X

POLICY n JECT CD "-OC
OTHER- Sexual Abuse Covera

GENERALAGGREGATE

ge

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

$.1M per occurrence

1,000,000

300,000

5,000

1,000,000

NONE

1,000,000

$2M agg

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddentl

1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

KA12668511 11/16/2024 11/16/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per aeddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddentl

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAJMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000.000

SI8EX01635-241 06/15/2024 06/15/2025 1,000,000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendatory In NH)
II >«s. des^be under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Professional Liability
RTP0045285 11/12/2024 11/12/2025

Limit

Deductible

$1,000,000

$2500

bESCRlPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remerka Schedule, may be attached If more tpace la required)

re: CHOICES Youth Mentoring program

NH Department of Justice
1 Granite Place South

1  Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CVjMuh/^
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

02/05/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELoW. this CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REF>RESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this'certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

Violetberri, LLC

1475 S Price Rd.

Chandler, AZ 85286

Colleen DeWitt

(800) 409-8958

certs@vensure.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC0

INSURER A Midwest Employers Casualty Company 23612

(NSUREO

Surge Resources, LLC
L/C/F Manchester Police Athletic League
300 Hanover Street

Manchester NH 3104

INSURER a

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHST/^NDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERALUABIUTY

E 1 1 OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE s

CLAIMS-MAC

bAhUGS To RENTED
PREMISES fEa occurrence! s

MED EXP (Any one person] s

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $

GEfa AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY n jIct eh I-OC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE s

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s

s

AUlCM0BILEUA6ILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per eccideni) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE s

s

UMBRELLA UAB 1 OCCUR
CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

EXCESS UAB AGGREGATE s

DED RETENTIONS
s

A
WOFIKERS COMPENSATION

N/A

KEYPEO00002501 39/09/2024 39/09/2025

yi PER OTH-
ViSTATin-F ER

AND EMPLOYERS' LlABILriY y 1N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERfl4EMBEREXCLU0ED7 | N |
(Mandatory In NH)
If y«8. describe under
OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S  1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE S  1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $  1.000,000

DES

Cov

Cl3

:RIPTI0N of operations / locations / vehicles (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is regulred)

erage provided for all leased employees but not subcontractors of: Manchester Police Athletic League,
ent Effective: 01/01/2025.

1

CANCELLATION

NH • New Hampshiie

NH Dept.of Justice
1 Granite Place South

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

1

Jodie R. Kramer Cole [j ' /

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

18214774 I SurgeResourcesLLC MASTER (NH) KEYPEOeee025ei | Linda Perez | 02/05/2025 11:02:16 AM -05 | Page 1 of 1



Certificate of Authenticity

This is to attest that the financial statements for the Manchester Police Athletic League,
Inc. for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, are correct in all material respects.

^ L <fcL^
^ames E. Chambers

Chairman, Board of Directors

Date
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GELINAS & PRATTE
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REPORT

December 26,2024

To the Board of Directors
Manchester Police Athletic League
409 Beech Street

Manchester, NH 03103

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Police Athletic League (a 501
(cX3) nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended and the
related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management's financial data and making inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AlCPA.
Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for
them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

We are required to be independent of Manchester Police Athletic League, New Hampshire and to meet
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our review.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Gelinas & Pratte, CPA
Manchester, NH

December 26, 2024

36 Salmon Street " 3 - 150 E. Palmetto Park Rd. • Ste. 800
.Manchester, NH 03104 Boca Raton, FL 33432

(603) 625-8931 • Fax: (603) 628-3594 (603) 625-8931 • Fax: (603) 628-3594



MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Total

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

MPD Grants Receivable

S 369,590

16,407

$  18,801

.23,020

$ 388,391

16,407

23,020
35,117

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

35,117

421,1 14 41,821 462,935

Noncurrent Assets

Property and Equipment, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation 639,234

• 639,234

639,234 0 639,234

Total Assets $ 1,060,348 $  41.821 $ 1,102,169

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 4,702 $ 4,702

17,999
Payroll Liabilities

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

17,999
— 22,701 0 22,701

—

Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets 1,037,647

41,821

1,037,647

41,821
Donor Restricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

1,037,647 41,821 1,079,468

$ 1,060,348 $  41,821 S 1,102,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Operating Revenues and Other Support:
Donations

Fundraising

Grants

Other

Total Operating Revenues and Other Support

Expenses:

Management and General
Program Service
Fundraising

Total Expenses

Non-Operating Income (Expense):
Interest Income

Total Non-Operating Activities

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year'

Net Assets, End of Year

$  91,296

286,574

166,282

9.425

553,577

260,701

289,75!

71,831

622,283
•

16,173

16,173

(52,533)

1,132,001

$1,079,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-5-



MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Expenses

Payroll and Payroll Tax
Occupancy

Professional Services

Insurance

Depreciation

Office Expense

Conferences/Events

Vehicle

Travel & Meetings

Event Space Rental
Other Direct Expense

Management

and General

Expenses

Program

Services

$ 120,196

52,349

13,000

24,171

25,640

19,602

3,851

1,892

$  259,700

13,340

Fundraising

$  28,876

1 1,550

1,574

3,587

1,366

30,321

11,268

Total

408,772

65,689

13,000

24,171

25,640

32,518

3,851

1,892

1,574

30,321

14,855

Total Expenses Reported on the
Statement of Activity $  260,701 $  289,75 $  71,831 $  622,283

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-6-



MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Change in Net Assets 5 (52,533)
Adjustments to Reconcile Chanue in Net Assets:

Accounts Recievable ' ' '
Depreciation 25,640
MPD Recievable (23,020)
Prepaid Expenses 3,024
Accounts Payaable 4,702
Payroll Liabilities

Net Cash Used in Operatin Activities (47,924)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Property Improvements (56,072)

Net Change in Cosh and Cash Equivaients (103,996)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year ^92,387

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 388,391

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-7-



MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2024

Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:

Nature of Organization: Manchester Police Athletic League (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit
organization established in 1992 for the purpose of providing at-risk youth with coaching and
mentoring services to build positive relationships between them and members of the Manchester
Police Department.

Method of Accounting: The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP).

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Organization maintains its cash and cash equivalents in various
bank deposit accounts which as of June 30, 2024 do not exceed federally insured limits. The
Organization has a cash management program, which provides for the investment of excess cash
balances primarily in short-term money market and certificates of deposit accounts. The
Organization considers such highly liquid investments with original maturities of one year or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

«

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and program reimbursements. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions and a review of subsequent
collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable and therefore
management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Classification and Reporting of Net Assets: The Organization reports information regarding its
assets, liabilities and net assets, and support, revenues and expenses according to three classes of net
assets: unrestricted net assets; temporarily restricted net assets; and permanently restricted net assets.
A description of the three net asset classes follows:

•  Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of net assets of the Organization that is neither
permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed stipulations.
•  Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions and other inflows of assets whose use
by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or
can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.
•  Permanently restricted net assets represent contributions and other inflows of assets whose use
by the Association is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time
nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those
stipulations.

As of June 30,2024, the Organization does not have any permanently restricted net assets.

Revenue Recognition: Revenues are reported when received ̂  increases in unrestricted net assets
unless use of the related assets are limited by donor-imposed restrictions. The Organization
recognizes revenue from fundraising programs and networking admissions when collected.

-8-
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MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

I. Nature of Orpani7^tion and Significant Ancountine Policies (Continued)

Donated Sen'ices and In-Kind Contributions: Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to
program services, administration, and fundraising and development activities. The financial
statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition
criteria prescribed by GAAP.

Investments and Investment Income: Investments are reported at fair value as of the date of the
statements of assets, liabilities and net assets. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected
in the accompanying-statements of support, revenues and expenses along with investment income
which consists of interest and dividends. ■

Property and Equipment. Net: Property and equipment additions arc recorded at cost, if purchased
and at tkir value at the.date of donation, if donated., Depreciatioii is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5-39 years. When assets are sold
or bthenvise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed and any resulting gain or loss
Is included in the Statement of Activities. Cosls of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or
extend the useful lives of the respective asset.s are"e.xpensed.

Advertising Costs: Tlie Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for
the year ended June 30,2024 was $1,779. ■

Income Taxes: The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as
exempt from'federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as an
organization described in IRC Section 50I(cX3). qualifies for charitable contribution deductions and
has' been determined not to be a private foundation. - The Organization is annually required to file a
Return of Organization'Exempt from Income Tax (Fonn 990) with the IRS. fhe Organization may
be "subject to federal and state income taxes for profits generated frOm'-trade or business activities
unrelated to the Organization's exempt function. - For the year ended June 30, 2024 the board
believes the Organization hasmot generated any unrelated business ta.xable income.

The Organization accounts for uncertain tax provisions under FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, which
provides a framework for how entities should recognize, measure, present "and disclose uncertain tax
positions in" thdr finiicia! statements. The Organizations may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain ta.\ position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. Management has
reviewed the Organization's reporting and believes they have not taken tax positions that are more
likely thari not to be determined to be incorrect by the IRS and therefore, no adjustments or
disclosures'are required. The Organi^lion 'is subject'to routine audits by taxing jurisdiction,
however, there are"curferiily no audits for any ta.X periods pending or in progress.'

Estimates: The preparation of firiancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to hiake estimates and bssumptiohs that affect'the reported amounts-of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those e'stimates. "

-9-



MANCHESTCR. POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE
NOTES TO THE RNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR YEAR ENOED JUNE 30. 2024

nnd Sk'nificani Acrmintino pqlicies fContinued")

Financial Instruments and Crcdit Risk: Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with
financial institutions l')elicved to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured
limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated
with accounts receivable is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates.

2. Mfthnd Accpuntinp Reconciliation

The Organizations Fo'rhV^O was prepared using die cash basis method ot accounting. Following is
a summary of reconciliation fVom the 990'to the financial statements:

GrossReveoue

• Beginning Accounts R,eceivable
■ Ending Accounts Receivable :
Grant Receivable

Total Gross Revenue

Expenses

Cnd,ing.Ac<;ounts Payable ,. ^
Beginning Prepaid Expenses

Ending Prepaid Expenses

Beginning Accrued Payroll
• Ending AccKied Payroll

Total Expenses

Cash Basis

■■S .'^39.097^

539,097 •

613,132

Adjustment

(5,054)
. 16,407

■  23,020
' . 34,373

(4.702)
..(37.670)

35,1 17

,  .12,3.83
(17,999)

(613,132)

(7^1,0.3.5)

(12,871)

$ . .. .21.502.Change lu Net Assets S.

3. Property and Eouipnient:

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2024 consists of the following.

Building and Improvements
Furhiriu'e, FixtuiCS,yaisd Equipment
Vehicle^

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,2024 v/as $25,640.

Accrual Basis

573^470

(626,003)

S. . . (52,533)

$ 1,025,443
171,548

13,528
.. .1,210,519

571,285
■ $ 639,234

- 10-
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MANCHESTER PdLICF:A\THLETlC LEAGUE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

j\'ei A:isels with Donor Restrictions: Net assets vvith donor restrictions were restricted for the
following purposes or programs at June 30,2024:

Programs

•  s 8,373Choices - 5 .
6,334

624
Cooking.

QC Court Diversion . v
DCYF& Waypoint Vduih --
Food&Famii>'

Ice. Cream Preset
fchiidiVn's Fund" '

...Mentoring,■ ■ ■■
. PareiUing Series;

Summer Program

1,959
2,204

Restricted Funds 41,821

5. Conccmtrption of Risk

A material portion of the Qrganization's revenue is dependent upon govemrneni sotirces, Jhc loss of
which woiild have a material adverse effect on the Organization. In fiscal year ^0^4, the City ot
Manchester provided approximately 24% and the State of New Hampshire providetl approximately
9%'6fi6taFi'e\'enues.

6. Commiripents and Contingencies: .

Grains:Anidunls received from grantor agencie.s are subject to audit and adjustment .by the grantor
age&ies; 'principally the state and hxal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liabilily of the applicable funds: The amount of expenditures

■  whidi'inaybe-disallbwed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Organization
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Crtm/K/'/mchT;. The Organization- paid expends for" programs thai have a eommltmcnt
agencies and sarlsfyiheTclatetrrtstrictions. The prc-paid restricted balances as of June 30, 2024.
'  ■ ■ 9,074Intcr/ention 13 946

Court Diversion c
-:'-MPDGrant-Rece"iyab!e .- ^

7. $ ubscqueiU EvehK.*' • '

N^anagcmefit !iai; evaluated subsequent eVents through December 9, 2024;
'  siatem^ms wei^i aviilableho be issudd and lias hot evaluated-subsequent events after that date. The

Organization did hbt'identify any subsequent events that would require disclosure.
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Manchester

Police Athletic League

409 Beech Street

Manchester, NH 03103

603-626-0211

ManchesterPoliceAthleticLeague.org

Manchester Police Athletic League

2025 Board of Directors

Name Position Professional Affiliation

James Chambers Chairman Retired

August Fromuth Treasurer Freedom Energy Logistics

Keri Pappalardo Secretary Lavallee Brensinger Architects

Celia Belletete Director Belletetes Building Products

James Brennan Director Harvey Construction

Tina Brown Director St. Mary's Bank

Monika Bryant Director Retired

Eva Castillo Director NH Alliance for Immigrants & Refugees

Mallory Chumas Director Mallory K Social

William Claffy Director Cross Insurance

Brian Frechette Director Elliot Health System

A. Eli Leino Director Bernstein Shur

David Lisboa Director Manchester Police Department

Daniel Maradiaga Director Derryfield Country Club

Peter Marr Director, Ex Officio Manchester Police Department

Eric Skillings Director NH Dept. of Health & Human Services

Serving Manchester's Youth at the Officer Michael Bri}*^s Community Center



IRS

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Tax Exempt and Government Entitles
PO Box 2508

Cincinnati, OH 45201

MANCHESTER POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE INC

409 BEECH ST

MANCHESTER, NH 03103

Data:

August 24, 2022
Employer ID number

02-0459470

Form 990 required;

990, YES
Person to contact;

Name: Ms. Wiles

ID number 0196728

Dear Sir or Madam:

We're responding to your request dated October 26,2021, about your tax-exempt status.

We issued you a determination letter in December 1997, recognizing you as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 501(c)(3).

We also show you're not a private foundation as defined under IRC Section 509(a) because you're described in IRC
Sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(l)(A)(vi).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to you as provided in IRC Section 170. You're also qualified to receive
tax-deductible bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055,2106, and 2522.

In the heading, we indicated whether you must file an annual information return. If you're required to file a return,
you must file one of the following by the 15th day of the 5th month after the end of your annual accounting period.

• Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
• Form 990-EZ, Short Form Retum of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
• Form 990-N, Electronic Notice (e-Postcard) for Tax-Exempt Organizations Not Required to File Form 990 or
Form 990EZ

• Form 990-PF, Retum of Private Foundation or Section 4947(a)(1) Trust Treated as Private Foundation

According to IRC Section 6033(j), if you don't file a required annual information return or notice for 3 consecutive
years, we'll revoke your tax-exempt status on the due date of the 3rd required return or notice.

You can get IRS forms or publications you need from our website at www.irs.gov/forms-pubs or by calling 800-TAX-
FORM (800-829-3676).

[f you have questions, call 877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m., local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and
Hawaii follow Pacific time).

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Stephen A. Martin
Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 4168 (Rev. 9-2020)
C8tak>g Number 66666G



Manchester

T
Police Athletic League

409 Beech Street

Manchester, NH 03103

603-626-0211

ManchesterPollceAthleticLeague.org

CHOICES High-Rlsk Youth Mentoring Program

Top 3 Key Personnel

Position Title Individual Annual Salary

Executive Director John Rainville $81,955

Intervention Programming Coordinator Evenor Pineda $74,160

CHOICES Mentor TBD $68,000

Servi/j}; Manchesler's Yoiiih ai the Officer Michael Brig^is Community Center



John F. Rainville

.JFrofcssional Ej^eriericc f

Manchester Police Athletic League - Manchester, NH

Executive Director - March 2021 - Present

• Manage a 501 (c) 3 nonprofit youth serving organization with 6 full-time and 6 part-time
employees, 15 year-round volunteer coaches, and a $600,000 budget to provide programming
for over 750 youth each year.

Daniel Webster Council, Boy Scouts of America — Manchester, NH

Development Director - January 2015 - February 2021

•  Independently managed up to ten annual fundraising events. Established partnerships,
recruited volunteers, solicited sponsors, managed promotional efforts, and handled logistics to
produce successful events.

•  Organized annual appeals to membership, board members, and New Hampshire businesses to
raise up to $475,000. Developed campaign materials, trained staff and volunteers, and managed
fundraising teams to achieve goals.

•  Produced the Boy Scouts' flagship fundraising event, the New Hampshire Distinguished
Citizens Award Dinner, raising between $100,000 and $140,000 annually from 2015 to 2019.
Created themes, developed printed material, coordinated committee efforts, recruited and
scripted speakers, directed each production, and managed event logistics.

Program Director - March 2010 - December 2014

• Worked with volunteer committees to plan, promote, and implement state-wide outdoor
programs for youth as well as adult leader trainings.

• Managed camp directors to deliver quality summer camp programs and provided marketing and
logistical support, including development of promotional materials and web site management.

•  Collaborated with facility managers at two camp properties to coordinate maintenance and
capital projects with program implementation.

•  Developed partnerships with community organizations and government agencies to provide day
camp experiences at locations around the state.

•  Partnered with professional sports teams and event promoters to provide Scouting families with
unique entertainment opportunities while raising funds to support council operations.

•  Secured grant funding for new facilities and program equipment and supervised project
implementation.

Outreach Director - May 2004-February 2010

• Managed a team of three executives and eleven paraprofessional program staff to provide
school-based outreach programs, Scouting for under-served youth, and Law Enforcement and
Fire Service "Exploring" career education opportunities for teens throughout New Hampshire.



John F. Rainville - Page 2 of 3

•  Utilized a $500,000 U.S. Department of Justice grant to expand school-based early intervention
programs for at-risk youth beyond Greater Manchester into both the Greater Seacoast area and
the Lakes Region in partnership with 35 public schools, the Dover Housing Authority, and the
Laconia Boys and Girls Club.

•  Grew Scouting in New Hampshire by using grant funding in partnership with youth-serving
organizations around the state to create 45 new Scout groups.

Learning For Life Executive - December 1999- May 2004

•  Secured grant funding from United Ways, government agencies, and private foundations to
support school-based outreach programs for at-risk youth in Greater Manchester.

•  Hired, trained, and supervised teams of paraprofessionals and interns to deliver school
programs and outdoor adventure programs for special populations.

•  Subsidized school outreach programming by selling outdoor adventure services to schools and
other organizations on a contract basis.

Adventure Program Specialist - September 1996 - December 1999

•  Taught at-risk youth in grades 5-12 life skills in both school-based and community center
focused early intervention programs.

•  Facilitated outdoor adventure programs including rock climbing, ropes course, kayaking, hiking,
and camping for a wide variety of youth and adult populations.

•  Instructed volunteer Scout leaders in youth behavior management and outdoor skills.

Special Assignments with Daniel Webster Council

Boston Portsmouth Airshow - VIP Services Manager/Logistical Support - 2010, 2011, 2012

•  Served on the leadership team that produced three air shows at Pease International Tradeport.
•  Coordinated hospitality services with major sponsors, serving over 5,000 guests daily, and

provided on-site customer service.

•  Recruited and managed dozens of volunteers to staff hospitality suites and reserved seating
areas and developed plans for security, crowd control, catering and beverage service, and
sanitation.

Over the Edge ̂^Xtreme Descent" - Technical Team Volunteer Coordinator - 2009, 2010, 2011

•  Recruited volunteers with climbing or rescue experience to help patrons rappel from the roof of
Manchester's Brady Sullivan Tower for the "Xtreme Descent" fundraising challenge.

Winni Derby - Marketing Director - 2017 / Tournament Director 2018 - 2021

•  Served on the leadership team that revitalized the annual Lake Winnipesauke salmon fishing
tournament after the previous producers canceled the 2016 event.

• Managed the tournament website, Facebook page, radio promotion, and all direct marketing.
•  Created partnerships with Lakes Region businesses to support and promote the tournament and

secured sponsorships.

•  Recruited volunteers and coordinated with New Hampshire Fish & Game to operate weigh
stations in Laconia and Wolfeboro.



John F. Rainville - Page 3 of 3

Women^s Leadership Reception - Creator and Staff Advisor - 2016-2020

•  Developed the concept for a new fundraising event recognizing women who volunteer for
Scouting as well as an outstanding woman in the community.

•  Recruited a volunteer committee to promote the reception, solicit sponsors, and develop the
evening's program to include a featured guest speaker.

Marketing & Communications - November 2013 - May 2014

•  Produced and distributed monthly newsletters, updates on policy changes, event promotions,
and other communications during a staff vacancy.

• Maintained Daniel Webster Council website. Created and managed online event registrations.

Interim District Executive - September 2012 - February 2013

•  Coordinated volunteer committees in the towns of Londonderry, Derry, Windham, Salem, and
Pelham to grow Scouting in those communities by recruiting youth, raising funds, and
cultivating new volunteers.

• Managed relationships with schools, churches, and service clubs to increase support for
Scouting.

Bachelor of Science in Outdoor Education - September 1996

•  University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

Associate in Applied Science in Forest Recreation - May 1994
•  Paul Smith's College, Paul Smiths, NY

Fundamentals of Fundraising - Association ofFundraising Professionals - November 2016
•  16 hour course presenting essential skills and best practices for non-profit fundraisers

People Management - BSA Centerfor Professional Development - January 2006
•  120 hour, 3 part series of management training courses including theory and self-assessment

Leadership Greater Manchester - Manchester, NH Chamber of Commerce - June 2005
•  9 full-day sessions exploring community issues and leadership with tours and panel discussions

Eagle Scout - Boy Scouts of America Troop 99, Goffstown, NH - September 1990

rmr.

U

Leadership Manchester Annual Retreat Facilitator - September 2000 - Present

•  Collaborate with Steering Committee leadership to facilitate the opening retreat for Leadership
Greater Manchester each fall. Guide 35-45 professionals through a two-day team-building
experience including group problem-solving, ropes course elements, and personal reflection.



EVENOR

PINEDA

Skills Summary

Highly self-motivated

Great Interpersonal Communication Skills

Adept at dealing with adversity

Hard working

Disciplined

Goal and results oriented

Competent in oral and written communication

Approachable situational management style

Read, Write, Speak Spanish

Experience:

Alternatives to Violence Project (AVP)

2010-2012: AVP Workshops Participant

2010-AVP Basic Workshop (24-hrs)

2010-AVP Relationships Workshop (8-hrs)

2011-AVP Personal Power Workshop (8-hrs)

2011-AVP Advanced Workshop (24-hrs]

2011-AVP Training for Trainers (24-hrs)

201 1-AVP Facilitator Workshop (8-hrs)

2012-AVP Facilitator Workshop (8-hrs)

2011-2013; Workshop facilitator

176-total hours facilitating, training, and aiding



Resident Communication Committee (RCC)

2013-2019; Resident Communication Committee member

2017-2019-RCC Choir

2015-2017-RCC Co-Choir

2013-2019-Educotion/Progroms Sub-Committee Choir

Manchester Police Athletic League (MPAL)

2020-2021; Futures Guest Speoker

2022-Present; Futures Co-Focliitotor

2022-Present; Juvenile Court Diversion

Panel Member

1:1 Mentor

Check-In Provider

2023; Growing Adolescents Through Guidonce & Engogement Progrom (GAGE)

Mentor

2023-Present; CHOICES Progrom Mentor

American Civil Liberties Union-New Hampshire (ACLU-NH)

2023-Present; Boord Member

2023-Present; Finonce Committee Boord Member

Education:

2002; GED-Adult Leorning Center (Noshuo)

2006-2012; Gronite State High School (NHDOC-Concord Speciol School District)

Completed High School Diplomo (2012)

2008-2018; Coreer Technology (CTEC) Courses (NHDOC)

Completed 18-Courses:

1.252.5 totol clossroom hours

2011-2015; New Englond College

Eorned 12-Credits

Employment-

Manchester Police Athletic League

Intervention Progromming Coordinotor/2023-Present

Futures Co-Focilitotor/2022-2023



Prime Source Foods

Field Sales Representative/ 2021-2023

Inside Sales Representative/2021

NH Department of Transportation

Traffic Signals Tech/2020-2021

Pavement Marking/2019-2020

NHDOC Recreation Department

Office Clerk/ 2013-2019

Batesviiie Casket Company

CNC Operator/2002-2005

Semi-Rub/2000-2002



Intervention Programming Coordinator

Manchester Police Athletic League

Manchester, NH

The Manchester Police Athletic League (MPAL) is an independent nonprofit incorporated in 1992 to pro

vide youth in the Manchester, NH area with a safe, structured environment and engaging programming

to help them learn to make positive choices and become productive members of the community. MPAL

strives to foster positive relationships between youth and police officers to break down barriers and

generate respect between police and families. Programming is offered free of charge and Includes a

wide variety of athletics, life skills coaching, enrichment opportunities, and early-intervention programs

for at-risk youth.

Position Summary

The Intervention Programming Coordinator is responsible for building and sustaining the juvenile justice

programming at MPAL. Key responsibilities include: program design, implementation, and assessment;

Volunteer and staff recruitment, training, supervision, and retention; program policy and procedure de

velopment and enforcement; expansion of community partnerships; and program sustainability.

Requirements:

□  Formerly incarcerated for offense stemming from negative influence of street culture or pov
erty. Department of Corrections recommendation required.

□  Lived experience as a high-risk teen

□ Minimum 2 years' experience planning and delivering youth based social service, education, or
recreation programs

0 Sensitivity to the potential effects of adverse childhood experiences, poverty, discrimination,
and other risk factors that impact youth and families

□ Appreciation of the value of volunteerism in delivering youth programming

□  Excellent written and verbal communication skills

□ Proficiency with Google Workspace or Microsoft Office

□ Driver's License and personal vehicle or access to a reasonable alternative

□  Flexibility to work 1-2 weekday evenings per week and occasional weekend events

Responsibilities:

Q Screen referrals and conduct program intake for eligible youth



□ Maintain a case load of high-risk youth and provide one-on-one mentoring to assist youth in
connecting with available services and making better decisions

□  Facilitate weekly skill building mentoring group for high-risk teens

□ Create a community agency network to support high risk youth with relevant services

□ Actively connect youth to community resources and monitor engagement to build positive sup
ports

□ Collaborate with the Department of Corrections for recruiting additional program volunteers
and future staff

□ Onboard, train, supervise, and evaluate program staff and volunteers

□ Collaborate with Clinical Supervisor to provide support and professional development for staff
and volunteers

□ Develop policy and procedures for safe and effective program delivery, communicate them with
staff and volunteers, and enforce compliance

□ Cultivate relationships with juvenile justice and youth service providers in the community and
facilitate referrals to and from other providers

□  Evaluate and report program effectiveness and monitor program grant award compliance

□  Identify needs for new program offerings, design programs to meet needs, and coordinate im
plementation

□  Build relationships with potential funding sources

□  Provide strategic community outreach to engage high-risk youth



CHOICES Mentor

Manchester Police Athletic League

Manchester, NH

The Manchester Police Athletic League (MPAL) is an independent nonprofit incorporated in 1992 to pro

vide youth in the Manchester, NH area with a safe, structured environment and engaging programming

to help them learn to make positive choices and become productive members of the community. MPAL

strives to foster positive relationships between youth and police officers to break down barriers and

generate respect between police and families. Programming is offered free of charge and includes a

wide variety of athletics, life skills coaching, enrichment opportunities, and early-intervention programs

for at-risk youth.

Position Summary

The CHOICES Mentor manages a caseload of high-risk teens and provides one-on-one mentoring under

the guidance of the Intervention Programming Coordinator and a Clinical Supervisor. This is a full-time

position that assists with screening and intake of clients, assessment of individual needs, and develop

ment of goals. Mentoring is conducted in semi-private settings, including the MPAL Community Center

and public establishments. Mentors advocate for youth wherever needed and may mediate with family,

peers, school personnel. Juvenile Parole & Probation Officers, and other youth service providers, as well

as attend court hearings and other juvenile justice proceedings. Mentors also support a weekly skills

building group that serves a majority of clients in their caseload.

Requirements:

□  Formerly incarcerated for offense stemming from negative influence of street culture or pov
erty. Department of Corrections recommendation required.

□  Lived experience as a high-risk teen

□ Sensitivity to the potential effects of adverse childhood experiences, poverty, discrimination,
and other risk factors that impact youth and families

□  Excellent verbal communication skills

□ Driver's License and personal vehicle or access to a reasonable alternative

□  Flexibility to work 1-2 weekday evenings per week and occasional weekend events

Responsibilities:

□ Screen referrals and conduct program intake for eligible youth

□ Maintain a case load of high-risk youth and provide one-on-one mentoring to assist youth in
connecting with available services and making better decisions



□ Advocate for clients and provide support by attending events such as service team meetings and
court appearances.

□ Mediate as necessary to deescalate conflict between clients and their families, peers, and ser
vice providers.

□ Support Intervention Programming Coordinator in facilitating weekly skill building mentoring
group for high-risk teens

□ Actively connect youth to community resources and monitor engagement to build positive sup
ports

□ Cultivate relationships with juvenile justice and youth service providers in the community and
facilitate referrals to and from other providers

□  Provide strategic community outreach to engage high-risk youth



Clinical Supervisor
Manchester Police Athletic League (MPAL)

Manchester, NH

Position Summary:

The Clinical Supervisor is a part-time position that provides clinical oversight and supervision of the CHOICES High-Risk
Youth Mentorship Program staff, including the Program Coordinator and two full-time Mentors. Responsible for
supporting staff in establishing and maintaining appropriate boundaries in mentor relationships and ensuring that

services are delivered in accordance with MPAL policies, industry best practices, and applicable regulations. Supervisor

conducts regular debriefings with program staff and provides coaching and support, facilitating professional
development. The Clinical Supervisor will also collaborate with the CHOICES team to develop program protocols and

assist staff in navigating the community mental health system to serve clients as needed.

Qualifications:

Must hold one of the following licenses in New Hampshire:

Clinical Mental Health Counselor (LCMHC)

Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW)

Pastoral Psychotherapist (LPP)

Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT)

School Social Worker (LSSW)

Psychologist.

Minimum 2 years' experience working with high-risk teens

Strong coaching and mentoring skills

Prior supervisory experience preferred

Responsibilities:

Provide case consultations to support mentors in guiding youth towards positive change

Provide both individual and team feedback to CHOICES staff to foster professional growth and competency

Monitor coaching practices of staff and ensure adherence to policies, procedures, and best practices

Assist mentors in identifying additional services that may benefit clients and navigating connection to those services

Provide guidance to staff during crisis situations and ensure timely intervention as needed to maintain safety and well-
being of both clients and staff

Monitor and coach Mentors' professional development and advise Intervention Coordinator of concerns and training

needs


